UNITED
NATIONS C R C

\‘:\\ﬁ/ Convention on the D ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 563

28 Septenber 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Twent y- second session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 563rd MEETI NG*

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 22 Septenber 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: Ms. MO

CONTENTS

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BODI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES

* No summary record was issued for the 562nd neeti ng.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99- 44307 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BODI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES (agenda item 5)

1. The CHAI RPERSON, noting that, because of the formal atnosphere in which
they had taken place, the nmeetings devoted to cooperation had in previous
sessions proved | ess constructive than had been hoped, invited the
representatives of the specialized agencies and other bodies to subnmit their
written statenents, but to avoid reading themout. The Comm ttee menbers had
expressed the desire that the participants should engage in a lively and
constructive dialogue |leading to lasting inmprovements in cooperation. The
Conmittee was especially interested in the views of the participants with
respect to ways of inproving cooperation, for exanple in foll owup and report
preparation in the field, and in the Commttee’s work in Geneva.

2. M. STAHLHOFER (World Health Organization (WHO)) said WHO was probably
the organi zation with the | east experience in cooperation at the country
level. It had only just begun a discussion on how to strengthen reporting and

the provision of data, both internally and from other partners. WHO al so

wi shed to take a nore active part in the preparation of the various reports to
the treaty bodies, which it had not so far done because of a |ack of expertise
in that area. The organi zation would thus have to train staff, first at
headquarters and then in the field, in the preparation of reports. Such
training was due to begin in the near future.

3. As for the followup to health-rel ated concl udi ng observati ons drawn up
by the Commttee, WHO often had insufficient know edge of the activities to
which the Committee referred, and in any case | acked the capacity to nake an
effective contribution. However, the organization was studying the
possibility of playing a nore active role in human rights, which was a
position supported at the highest |evel.

4, Ms. MLLER (United Nations Children’s Fund (UNI CEF)) said that nmany
cooperation issues had been discussed at a neeting held at UNICEF' s Geneva
office during the Conmttee s previous session. UN CEF highly appreciated the
work of the Comm ttee and saw val uabl e synergy between the two bodies. It was
very active in encouraging Governnents to submt reports, not |east because in
meeting their reporting obligations the latter had to confront a | arge nunber
of issues and problens that woul d otherw se not receive the required
attention. It was particularly helpful to UNICEF that the reporting procedure
i nvol ved broad participation by |ocal organizations, as that sensitized
Governnents still further to problens requiring technical support, including
hel p from UNI CEF.

5. There was clearly a connection between the Commttee's concl uding
observations and UNICEF' s work in the field. The concluding observations
served as an authoritative source of support for UNICEF s activities, for
exanple in cases where the CGovernnment concerned had been | ess than supportive
of the organization's initiatives.

6. UNI CEF had significantly increased attendance by its field staff at both
the pre-sessional working group and the regular session. For exanple, at the



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 3

| ast two sessions UNICEF field staff from each country had been represented.
That reflected a better understanding on their part of the useful ness of the
Committee’s work and its synergy with their own pursuits. Increasingly,
responsi bility was being assumed by UNI CEF field personnel for coordinating
the various partners in the followup to the Cormittee' s observations, and
nmore specifically for organizing efforts to inplenment its recommendati ons.
Per haps some guidelines for field offices should be drawn up to share their
positive experiences and give exanples in that regard. The next step should
be the creation of a practical |ink between the recommendati ons and UNI CEF s
programm ng and pl anni ng process. As had been noted in their previous
nmeeting, UNI CEF and the Conmittee should work to establish a meaningfu
mechani sm for feedback during the five-year interval between periodic reports.
Staff in the field would certainly be nore notivated if they knew that their
reports would serve to keep the Conmttee up to date on the situation of
children in their countries of assignnment.

7. Her organi zation, and especially its field offices, had received nany
conpl ai nts about the backlog in the Commttee’'s work. Often the |ocal UN CEF
of fice would work hard to urge a Governnent to submit its report on tine, only
to learn later that the Comm ttee had postponed consideration of that
particul ar report, sonetimes for up to two years. In such cases, UNI CEF
expl ai ned the reasons for the backlog and the Cormmittee's efforts to clear it,
but it was inmportant for the Commttee to note the dissatisfaction expressed
by Governnents.

8. It was worth making the point that Governments which did not have

per manent mssions in Geneva often turned to UNICEF for |ogistic assistance in
maki ng arrangenments and reservi ng acconmodati on for their del egations
attendi ng sessions of the Conmttee. That was only understandabl e, as UNI CEF
strongly urged themto send representatives to the Commttee's neetings and
could hardly | eave them wi t hout assistance. However, the role the

organi zation played in its effort to be hel pful represented an extra burden
which did not fall within its mandate. Perhaps sone coordination with the
secretariat would be appropriate.

9. Ms. NOGUCHI (International Labour Ofice (I1LO) said that |1LO had nmade
an effort to informits offices in the field of the Cormittee's proceedings,
concl udi ng observati ons and recommendati ons. Interestingly, it had found that

Governnments tended to be much nore frank and forthcom ng about probl enms and
challenges in their reports to the Comrittee than they were in their reporting
to ILO States were required to informILO on various matters covered by

i nternational |abour conventions, yet their reports tended to deny the

exi stence of problens such as child | abour, while those submtted to the
Committee would in the same cases acknow edge that such problens did exist.
The difference was perhaps attributable to the consultation of

non- gover nnent al organi zati ons (NGOs) during the drafting of the Conmttee's
reports. In any case, the information submtted to the Cormittee constituted
a val uable source for ILOfield and headquarters staff, and for those working
on the question of child labour in particular

10. Over and above the standard-setting work of the organization, I1LO also
had a number of departnments engaged in technical cooperation, including the
I nternational Programme on the Elimnation of Child Labour (IPEC). Under the



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 4

| eadership of the new Director-GCeneral, the office had decided to place nore
enphasis on | PEC. The appropriate departnents would be invited to increase
their cooperation with the Comrittee so as to enhance the effectiveness of
their work.

11. I LO conventions often suffered fromthe absence of ratification, which
inmpaired their authority and made it difficult for ILOto urge States to
conply with their provisions. The Convention on the Rights of the Child, on
the other hand, enjoyed universal acceptance and served as a reference for
ILO s pronotion of practical neasures to inprove the situation of children

t hroughout the worl d.

12. The CHAI RPERSON, noting that the Conmittee had consistently called on
countries that had not yet done so to ratify ILO Convention No. 138, asked to
what extent I1LO field personnel had been trained in nethods that could be of
assistance to the Committee's work. In what way could they help countries to
prepare their reports, and how could they assist Governnents to inplenent the
recommendati ons fornul ated by the Conmittee? Perhaps Ms. Noguchi could try to
cover those questions during the course of the neeting.

13. Ms. THEYTAZ- BERGVANN (NGO Group for the Convention on the Rights of the
Child) said that NGOs should collaborate in the drafting of country reports,
but should not actually wite themor draft joint reports with their

Governments. It should be clear that the responsibility for witing and
submtting reports lay with Governments, and NGOs should maintain their role
as nonitors. In cases where reports had been drafted jointly, some NGGs had

found thenmselves in the regrettable position of being unable to submt
suppl enentary information to the Commttee.

14. The secretariat was to be commended for informng the NGO G oup

i mredi ately of the subm ssion of reports. It had also nade certain reports
available in their original formats, prior to repagination and editing for
United Nations publication and before the translated versions were published,
t hus saving precious tine.

15. On the other hand, the lack of information from NGO sources was nost
acute in a fewregions or types of States, including central Africa, the
M ddl e East, small island States and other very small countries. The NGO

Group was addressing those shortcom ngs, for instance by carrying out nore
training sessions and identifying NGOs which were likely to provide the
Committee with information. It was also trying to keep NGOs up to date on
deadl i nes for the subm ssion of information, a task which had been conplicated
by the frequent changes to the Cormittee's tinetable. Because information on
the rights of the child in nost countries emanated not froma single NGO but
from many which had to work in concert, a great deal of tine was required.

16. The Committee nenbers had probably noticed that the NGO presentations on
the two countries submitting periodic reports at the current session had
addressed the interests and concerns previously expressed by the Cormittee.
That was a direct result of the NGO Group's coordinating efforts. The nore
informati on the Commttee could provide, the better the participating NGOs



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 5

could tailor their presentations to neet its needs. Because nost of the
Conmittee's deliberations on its own working nethods took place in private, it
was very inportant to keep NGOs infornmed of any changes or specific

requi renents so as to nmake the best possible use of NGO field resources.

17. Begi nning in 2000, the NGO Group hoped to be in a position to translate
at |least sonme of the NGO information into English, which was the working

| anguage of nost of the Conmittee nenbers. The aimwas to increase access to
the information and at the sane time to spread the burden, which would
otherwise fall on the few Conmttee nenbers who understood the origina

| anguage of submi ssion.

18. The pre-sessional working group had allotted only a |imted amunt of
time for discussions with NGOs. NGO representatives who travelled very |ong
di stances were understandably eager to enter into dialogue, and the tine
constraints had led to frustration. Perhaps there would be sone way to
arrange for contacts between Committee nenbers and NGO and UNI CEF field staff
outside the neeting room for exanple at |unches or during other intervals so
as to take full advantage of their presence in Geneva. The sane problem
existed with regard to the plenary sessions.

19. NGOs were somewhat di sconcerted by the |ack of direct inpact their
presentations had had on the lists of issues. Regarding follow up, both

i nternational and national NGOs felt that the concludi ng observations tended
to follow a uniformpattern and the Committee should nake an effort to tailor
themto the specific situation of each country. NGO representatives were al so
frustrated because of the lack of a mechanismin the Cormittee to handle
urgent appeals. The current procedure, whereby the Committee sinply “took
note” of such appeals or conmplaints, was considered unsatisfactory. Her
organi zati on was not soliciting such comruni cations, as it believed the
Conmittee did not want to receive them Sone clarification would be nost

wel cone in that regard

20. M. DOEK remarked that the Commttee should do its utnpst to nmaintain
its good relationship with the United Nations agencies and NGOs, which was
crucial toits work. Gven the time constraints on Comrittee sessions, NGO
representatives could perhaps neet with Commttee menmbers during lunch breaks
to exchange ideas and ensure that the lists of issues better reflected their

I nput .

21. Wth regard to the specialized agencies, while he appreciated WHO s
signi ficant contribution, he suggested that it could make further inputs to
the Conmittee’s work at the country level by, for instance, inproving

i nternational standards for dealing with health-rel ated problens, as it was
al ready doing in the area of sexual abuse. Where |ILO was concerned, whereas
nati onal reports often nentioned nenoranda of understandi ng concerning the
I nternational Programme on the Elimnation of Child Labour (1PEC), they did
not al ways specify the content or the practical action taken. He would

t herefore wel come regular information on |PEC-related activities. He
expressed satisfaction with UNICEF' s contri bution, but suggested that the
Committee explore ways of supporting UNICEF s role as a travel agent, guide
and housing facilitator for certain del egations. He also advocated |inking
the Committee’ s recomendations to UNICEF' s country reports and pl ans.



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 6

22. The CHAI RPERSON said it would be nutually beneficial if all partners
consistently invited Cormittee nmenbers - who represented different
geographical areas - to their regional neetings in order to enhance

i nt er-agency cooperation

23. Ms. SARDENBERG wel coned the presence of those agencies which had
attended what she viewed as the first assessment neeting, and regretted that
nore had not done so. It was vital to review and expand relations with
partners, which had been a fundanental aspect of the Committee’s work fromits
i nception and shoul d be continued pursuant to article 45 of the Convention
The agenci es present m ght | obby others to encourage themto attend the
Conmittee’s sessions, since they were in a strategic position to provide the
Committee with information. She appl auded the fact that some agencies were
becom ng increasingly involved in staff training, in the reporting process,
and in the other phases of inplenentation. She particularly welcomed WHO s
efforts to incorporate the human rights dimension in its work, a vital aspect
of the United Nations current approach

24, She stressed the need for continuity in view of the fact that projects
| aunched were sonetinmes di scontinued for various reasons. Cuidelines should
be adhered to as closely as possible in order to facilitate the Comrittee's

work and enable it to conbine its own information with that provided in the

nati onal reports. The Committee’s report assessment woul d benefit from new
gui del i nes on sexual abuse and ot her issues.

25. She wel coned UNICEF's offer to play a coordinating role, and called for
closer integration of summt goals with the Commttee’ s inplenentation task.
It was therefore crucial, even at the country level, for those goals to be
absolutely clear. The Committee's assessnent capacity needed to be inproved,
since its scrutiny of initial reports would one day cone to an end and it
woul d be dealing exclusively with periodic reports. Wth regard to ILO, she
agreed with M. Doek on the need for nore detailed reporting on I PEC-rel ated
programes, and advocated cl ose follow up of inplementation of the new ILO
Convention No. 182 on the Wrst Fornms of Child Labour

26. There were two probl enms which the Committee needed to solve with regard
to NGOs: one was the tinme allotted them when they addressed the Comm ttee, and
the other was the | anguage difficulties, which sometimes prevented them from
comuni cating with the Committee.

27. Ms. EL GUNDI, while praising NGO participation, which was inportant
gi ven their easier access to information on critical child issues, wondered
what criteria were applied in selecting NGOs to be represented at neetings of
the pre-sessional working groups.

28. Ms. KARP said that ways shoul d be sought of making the inportant
partnership with NGOs and agencies nore effective, not only because it
enhanced the Commttee’s role, but al so because they could mnonitor

i mpl enentati on of the Convention in the field. She understood the frustration
of NGGCs, which, given their considerable input into country reports, were
prevented by tine constraints from speaking at |ength when they addressed the
Committee. The NGO Group could help NGOs prepare for their dialogue with the
Committee, inpressing upon themthe fact that the exercise should be mutually



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 7

beneficial and the need to be nore focused in the information they supplied
and the questions they wished the Committee to put to delegations. Different
gui del i nes were perhaps needed to ensure that NGOs apprised the Conmittee of
deficiencies in country reporting and highlighted i ssues on which the
Committee’s concl udi ng observations shoul d focus.

29. Ways shoul d be found for the specialized agencies to encourage those
working in the field to adopt a rights-based approach and ensure that
children’ s rights were incorporated into Governnents’ plans of action. UNHCR
and WHO had al ready enbarked on such a course. VWhile inter-agency cooperation
in the field was inportant, it was perhaps too far-reaching. She recomrended
that UNICEF' s use of NGOs in specific fields should serve as a nodel for other
agenci es - perhaps through a network of NGOs working in a particular country -
to provide grassroots information.

30. Wil e she supported the idea of devel oping guidelines in the various
fields, she felt that WHO s gui delines on health, for instance, should be

mul ti sectoral and take account of those established in other areas. Each
agency should al so provide the Comrittee with an overview of trends and

achi evenents in the area of children’s rights, not for a specific country, but
with regard to its own activities. She appreciated UNICEF' s willingness to
serve as a focal point for coordinating inplementation and its provision of
techni cal assistance for the juvenile justice system by organizing joint
meetings with Governnments, NGOs and ot her agencies. She would reconmend t hat
such assi stance be extended to other areas.

31. M_. RABAH endorsed his coll eagues views on partnership as a conpl enent
to the Cormittee’s normal work. Once its recomrendati ons had been issued, it
woul d be useful if NGOs and specialized agencies could act as watchdogs,

report to the Cormittee at each session, and furni sh conprehensive data on the
i npl enmentation of all recomrendati ons nade to each State party. Child | abour
being a serious issue, ILO could, for instance, report on inplenentation of
its new Convention No. 182. Since, for a variety of reasons, Comttee
menbers rarely visited the field, UNNICEF - with its many country offices -
could provide the Comrmittee with detail ed, up-to-date information on each
State party.

32. Ms. TIGERSTEDT- TAHTELA cited the UNI CEF brochure to the effect that
Governnments and international financial institutions had cone to recognize

t hat expenditures on human devel opment were both sound economi c investnents
and necessary conditions for the enjoyment of human rights. She wondered in
that connection why the international financial institutions were not
represented at the current neeting, and whether the agencies present
cooperated with them

33. The CHAI RPERSON noted that the Committee itself cooperated with the

i nternational financial institutions, which were regularly invited to its
sessions and at tines attended. That trend should be encouraged. The need
for the corporate community and the financial institutions to be nore human
rights-oriented was the subject of much interest, and had recently been
mentioned in statenments by the United Nations Hi gh Commr ssioner for Human
Ri ghts and the Directors Ceneral of UN CEF and WHO




CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 8

34. Ms. THEYTAZ- BERGVANN (NGO Group for the Convention on the Rights of the
Child), inreply to an earlier question, explained that the Goup did not
actually select NGOs to attend the sessions of the pre-sessional working
groups, but sinply attenpted to informas many nati onal NGOs as possi bl e that
their Governnent had submtted a report to the Commttee and that informtion
fromthem would be welcome. In doing so it relied on its databases and NGO
menbers of the Goup, while in countries where it had no contacts it | ooked to
UNI CEF for guidance.

35. The G oup pronoted the subm ssion of joint reports by nationa
coalitions of NGOs, but that process was stimulated at the national |eve
rather than by the Geneva staff, whose role was limted to the provision of
trai ning and support. The G oup reconmended that the reporting process,
especially with regard to initial reports, should not be limted to the
capitals. It tried to be as inclusive as possible, and transmtted all the
information it received to the Committee.

36. The CHAI RPERSON reni nded the neeting that it was for the commttee to
invite NGOS to participate in its pre-sessional working groups and read out
rule 34 of the Conmittee's rules of procedure to that effect.

37. Ms. THEYTAZ- BERGVANN (NGO Group for the Convention of the Rights of the
Child) said that maps of the kind suggested by a nenber of the Commttee were
an excellent idea. Naturally they would have to be produced at country |evel,
and funding would be required. Such maps did exist, but they were very few
and far between.

38. Regardi ng the inpact on the pre-sessional working group of the increase
in the nunber of reports considered, she said her Group attenpted to provide
NGOs wi th guidelines on how to present information to the Conmittee. |Its

briefings would be inproved, however, if the Conmttee provided it with nore
direction regarding its goals for the pre-sessional working group. Mking the
lists of issues and concl udi ng observations nore strategi c and
country-specific was one of the G oup' s concerns.

39. She agreed that no real mechanismexisted for followup to the
Committee's concl udi ng observations. On that point also, the NGO G oup woul d
al so appreciate guidelines fromthe Conmttee. The nonitoring process was a
huge task, and NGOs needed to know how the followup information they provided
woul d be used.

40. Ms. MLLER (United Nations Children's Fund (UNI CEF)) associ ated UNI CEF
with the comments of the representative of the NGO Goup with regard to the
expectations of people who travelled fromthe field to participate in the
Committee's pre-sessional working groups. She agreed that UNI CEF had an
important role to play in the followup to the Convention, and its work woul d
be facilitated by the fact that it had incorporated the reporting process.
Wth regard to M. Rabah's conment about the regular supply of information
she said that, in addition to UNICEF' s overall report, each UN CEF country

of fi ce produced an annual report, which she would be happy to nake avail abl e
to the Coormittee. Once field participants in a pre-sessional working group



CRC/ C/ SR. 563
page 9

had returned to their countries of assignment, the Comrmittee might also
contact themdirectly for followup, through e-mail and other forms of
conmuni cati on.

41. Ms. NOGUCHI (International Labour Organization (1LO) said that the
International Programme on the Elimnation of Child Labour (1PEC) was a new
programe whi ch was expandi ng at great speed; once it had digested the |arge
vol une of information being submtted to it, she was certain that it would be
very interested in cooperating with the Conmittee. 1In reply to a remark by
the Chairperson, she said she agreed that it would be hel pful for a
representative of IPEC to attend Committee sessions in the future. An

i mportant potential area of cooperation between | PEC and the Conmittee was the
ratification of 1LO Convention No. 182, the Wrst Forns of Child Labour
Convention. She noted that |ILO regarded the Convention on the Ri ghts of the
Child as sonmething of a role nodel because of the wide ratification it had
achieved. 1In that connection, the Comrittee m ght wish to receive further

i nformati on about 1LO s 1998 Decl arati on on Fundanental Principles and Rights
at Work, which included the area of child rights.

42. ILOs tripartite structure enabled it to be of help at the nationa

level in addition to the preparation of reports. Trade unions were active in
soci al areas inportant to national devel opnent, and enpl oyers exerted a strong
i nfluence on national neasures.

43. M. STAHLHOFER (World Health Organi zation (WHO)) said that there was an
i ncreased | evel of awareness within WHO of child rights. Recent activities
such as the Tobacco-free Initiative and the world report on violence currently
under preparation specifically included child rights, and the experts
devel opi ng the guidelines for the prevention of child abuse also took the
Convention into account. He agreed that there was a need for further

i nformati on-sharing with the Cormittee.

44, The CHAI RPERSON, summi ng up the debate, said that first, the Commttee
recommended that all United Nations partners attenpt to incorporate the child
rights approach into all aspects of their work at both headquarters and in the
field. Second, coordination between the United Nations and NGOs in the field
shoul d begin with the preparation of a State party report and continue through
followup of the Conmttee's concludi ng observations. Third, to |essen
frustration on both sides when field staff cane to participate in

pre-sessi onal working group neetings, M. Doek's suggestion regarding |unch
and di nner encounters m ght be taken up. Fourth, the Committee wel comed

f eedback concerning its concluding observations and reconmendati ons and agreed
on the need to inprove quality and reduce its backlog of work. Fifth, because
the Committee did not have a field presence, continuous cooperation between it
and its partners in the field was all the nore inportant for followup to the
i mpl enmentati on of the Convention

The neeting rose at 5 p. m




